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Architectural Review Board
Staff Report (ID # 9820)

Report Type:

Subcommittee Items

Meeting Date: 11/15/2018

Summary Title:

744 San Antonio Road: Subcommittee Review of Lighting

Title:

744 San Antonio Road [15PLN-00314]: Subcommittee Review
of a Previously Approved Project That was Conditioned to
Return With Project Changes Related to Lighting.
Environmental Assessment: Exempt from the Provisions of the
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) in Accordance
With Section 15061(b)(3) That the Project is not Subject to
CEQA Because the Proposed Revisions Will not Have a
Significant Effect on the Environment. Zoning Districts: CS
(Service Commercial). For More Information Contact the
Project Planner Sheldon S. Ah Sing at sahsing@m-group.us

From:

Jonathan Lait

Recommendation
Staff recommends the Architectural Review Board (ARB) take the following action(s):
1. Discuss and provide direction or approve project revisions.

Background
On June 12, 2017, the City Council adopted a Record of Land Use Action approving the subject
project. At the Architectural Review Board’s recommendation, a condition was imposed that
required certain project elements return to the ARB subcommittee. One of those conditions
regarding terrace landscaping was addressed with the ARB at a subsequent hearing (November
1, 2018). Below is the outstanding item that was requested to return to the subcommittee and
the applicant’s response to the ARB’s comments:
Architecture Review Condition:


#11 LIGHTING PLANS: The lighting plans shall be reviewed by the Architectural Review
Board subcommittee to ensure lighting and light glare does not spill over to the
residential land uses across the street.

City of Palo Alto
Planning & Community Environment
250 Hamilton Avenue
Palo Alto, CA 94301
(650) 329-2442

Packet Pg. 170

4
City of Palo Alto
Planning & Community Environment Department

Page 2

Applicant’s Response:
 The updated lighting plan and photometrics plan demonstrates that light levels dissipate
at San Antonio Road. Based on these plans, it is anticipated that there will be no light
glare and spill over to the residential neighborhood across San Antonio Road.
A video recording of the Board’s last meeting on this project is available online:
http://midpenmedia.org/architectural-review-board-60/
The Board is encouraged to provide direction to staff and the applicant as to whether the
proposed changes are sufficient or requires further refinement.

Report Author & Contact Information
Sheldon S. Ah Sing, AICP
(408) 340-5642 x109
sahsing@m-group.us
Attachments:
 Attachment A: April 6, 2017 ARB Minutes
 Attachment B: Project Plans (DOCX)
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ARB1 Liaison & Contact Information
Jodie Gerhardt, AICP, Planning Manager
(650) 329-2575
jodie.gerhardt@cityofpaloalto.org

(PDF)

Emails may be sent directly to the ARB using the following address: arb@cityofpaloalto.org
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Attachment A:

Excerpt ARB Minutes
April 6, 2017

6.

744

PUBLIC HEARING / QUASI-JUDICIAL. 744-748 San Antonio Avenue
[15PLN-00314]: Recommendation on Applicant’s Request for Approval of a
Major Architectural
Review to Allow the Demolition of Two Existing Commercial/Office Buildings at

and 748 San Antonio Avenue and Construction of Two, Five-Story Hotels
(Courtyard
by Marriott with 151 rooms and AC by Marriott with 143 rooms). The Site Will
City of Palo Alto
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Include Surface and Two Levels of Basement Parking. Environmental
Assessment: A
Draft Environmental Impact Report (DEIR) has Been Prepared Pursuant to the
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). The Public Comment Period for the
DEIR
is From March 27, 2017 to May 10, 2017. Zoning District: CS. For More
Information,
Contact Sheldon Ah Sing at sahsing@m-group.us
Mr. Lait: Is he back here?
Chair Lew: Kyu?
Mr. Lait: Yeah, did he leave?
Chair Lew: Kyu left so I need to his recusal for him.
Mr. Lait: Are you going to explain why’s he’s recusing?
Chair Lew: Yeah, and then we have disclosers as well. I should make an
announcement. We have item number six. Is a public hearing on a quasi-judicial matter
for 744 and 748 San Antonio Avenue. Recommendation on applicant’s request for
approval of a major architectural review to allow the demolition of two existing
commercial office buildings at 744 and 748 San Antonio Avenue and construction of
two, five-story hotels which are the Courtyard by Marriott with 151 rooms and AC by
Marriott with 143 rooms. The site will include surface and two levels of basement
parking. Environmental Assessment is a Draft EIR has been prepared pursuant to the
CEQA and the public comment period for the DEIR is from March 27, 2017, to May 10,
2017, and the zone district is CS. We have the Staff report but I think that I should
announce that Vice Chair Kim is recused on this item because he has a working
relationship on another project, not related to this one, with Randy Pop, the project
architect for this item. I think we also have disclosures from other Board Members.
Board Member Baltay: Yes, I did meet with architect Pop in my office last week where
we discussed the project and he outlined what he was where the various merits of it. Of
interest was that he felt that he and the City Council were in agreement with what the
contextual nature of this site was and then that this was very much in context, in his
opinion. That’s – thank you.
Chair Lew: Wynne?
Board Member Furth: I met with architect Randy Pop in his office. I – we went over the
images that are part of the official packet but more slowly and larger setting. We
discussed my previously raised concern about how to minimize the risk of up back-ups
from the hotel driveway into San Antonio travel lanes. He mentioned that there would
be 24/7 valet parking to address that. The shuttle would be unloaded to the rear of the
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properties and there was no event space in the hotels. I’ll just mention that in looking
at the TDM, I don’t think I saw references to all those and I don’t believe that there’s
anything else that is not in the public record that we discussed. (Inaudible)
Chair Lew: Robert? No. I will disclose that I talked to Randy Pop on the phone on March
14th about some other items as well as this particular project and there’s nothing that
we discussed that isn’t in the Staff report or the drawings. Sheldon?
Mr. Ah Sing: Ok, thank you again. I do have a PowerPoint presentation and the
applicant is here with their PowerPoint as well. You got a good introductory there. The
location it’s along San Antonio between Leghorn and Middlefield and it’s right on the
boundary of the City of Mountain View, as well behind. We are here this afternoon,
Staff – while we did provide findings, they’re just the base findings. There’s no
recommendation of approval for instance so just reconsideration to conduct a hearing.
Seek input on the EIR, which is now in circulation. As well as input on the architectural
review itself. I do want to mention that the Draft of the Environmental Impact Report,
there is one unavoidable significant impact to the historic resources on site. There’s no
mitigation to demolish a potential eligible historic structure so just to highlight that. The
project requests for architectural review. There’s also a parking adjustment up to 20%,
that is for the valet parking or parking spaces that are within the drive aisle so they are
not standard parking spaces per code. There where previous meetings for this project.
The preliminary Board meeting in June of 2015. There were concerns at that time
regarding massing compared to the surrounding. Some of the relationship of the
building to the driveway and entries. There was one formal ARB meeting in December
2015. At that time, the applicant did revise the plans to step back the front façade.
They did push the mechanical equipment to the center of the buildings. Generally,
though, the buildings are separated. The brands, the two brandings are separated.
There is also an additional meeting that was specifically for the Environmental Impact
Report. It was a required scoping meeting that was conducted in March of last year and
we hear from the public concerns about traffic, water, esthetics for instance. The site
plan for the project, there’s a 24-foot special set back along San Antonio. The street
trees would remain there but the balance of the site would be raised and that includes
the two different buildings – the two different properties and also the eligible historic
building. The projects include two different branded hotels by Marriott; just different
brands. They are five-stories at about 50-feet. That includes a driveway down the
center. There’s a circular round-a-bout there that would service the lobbies and the
applicant can describe a little bit more about the operations there in regarding the valet
parking. There is some surface parking towards the rear and there’s a ramp that leads
down to a full basement and there’s like a smaller second level for basement parking.
Not a full site level but just a smaller segment. This drawing here demonstrates the
front elevations. They have some perspectives there but it’s a little difficult to tell from
the front of what’s going on but you can see where the applicant has proposed some
erosion of the building to step back from San Antonio. That’s their response to some of
the massing along that street and there’s some articulation along the sides, although
that is still roughly about 10-feet setback but there’s some articulation there. This does
show a little bit more about what’s going on in the cross section of that and especially
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in relation to the residence across the street. You can see that line demonstrates the
height of the greenhouse residences and how that relates to the new buildings where
they do step back from the street from the third-level. There’s approximately about
200—feet difference between the buildings there along San Antonio. I thought this was
maybe one of the other better drawings to show the stepping back. The roof plan, you
can see again, from the different levels of how that occurs at the front. That doesn’t
necessarily occur on the other sides or the rear particularly. Again, I wanted to stress
the side. There is – you are going up five-stories and it kind of just drops down. In
adjacent to the site, you’re going to have existing buildings that are relatively low
intensity at this time. It could go to .4 FAR but they probably wouldn’t be as passive as
this project is because it does allow up to 2.0 FAR. Some of the keys issues there that
we want to highlight and we do in the Staff report, is the architecture, the context
compatibility, the site plan and some of the environmental issues. As I mentioned, that
the surroundings include low-scale commercial residential institutional buildings. These
are all FAR around 0.4 or less, along that stretch. The project again, would include two,
five-story hotels and that’s – on this block, is – would be the tallest structure. San
Antonio road is a wide infrastructure. It’s four lanes and it’s a divide street. This exhibit
does – diagram shows the present FAR along San Antonio. You can see, again it’s
roughly .4 or so. You have some really low ones there because they are gas stations.
There’s not really much – but definitely at 2.0, this would be one of the larger buildings
in the area. I wanted to mention a little bit about the parking. This project provides 294
spaces, 278 of those are in the two-level basement. There are 236 self-park and 58
valet spaces and valet spaces are located in the drive aisles as I mentioned as they are
not standard parking space so therefore they have to apply for the parking adjustment
and the 20% equates to 58 spaces. A transportation monument program has been
proposed for the project. That reduction was not calculated into the traffic study so the
traffic study just shows what the net trips would be on the traffic and it didn’t not count
for the transportation demand management so they wanted to be on the conservative
side there. Moving on to the CEQA. The Environmental Impact Report was required
because of – mainly the cultural resources unavoidable impact. The scoping meeting
was conducted on March 3rd to get comments on what should be studied for the impact
report and that draft impact report was circulated on March 27th and that will be – we’ll
be getting comments on it through May 10th. Again, the potential impacts would be on
air quality, that’s with construction. You have biological resources, again, some of the
same things we had mentioned in the past project. The cultural resources, there’s an
existing building on site that I’ll mention in just a little bit that’s eligible for historic
listing. Then you hazardous and hazardous materials on the ground that there’s
mitigation for so all those can be mitigated except for the cultural resource. Just
speaking to that, the structure was erected in 1961. It was used as a mortuary -- a
funeral home and there was a significant rear addition in 1983 but end despite that,
based on the evaluation, it’s eligible for listing on the California Register due to its age
and also the characteristics of its mid-century modern architecture. Just the timeline on
the EIR and what’s coming up next. Responding to public comments that do come in, to
complete the mitigation monitoring program. We’ll have to come up with statement of
overriding considerations for the unavoidable impact and the then the certification of
the final EIR by the City Council. In conclusion, the project complies with the objective
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developments with the exception of parking. They are asking for that adjustment. The
ARB has identified some issues in the past regarding compatibility and overall massing
in previous meetings and we do believe that many of those concerns have not been
adequately addressed so we are – in the next steps, seeking some direction from the
ARB on this. We want to concluded the circulation period, respond to those comments,
received recommendation from the ARB and then that would be forwarded on to City
Council to decide on the architectural review with the parking adjustment as well as
certification final EIR. Today what we are asking is to review and comment on the draft
EIR and continue the project to a date uncertain for redesign. That concludes my
presentation and I’d be happy to answer any questions you have.
Chair Lew: Why don’t we – are there any questions or we can do the applicant
presentation now? Why don’t we do the applicant presentation and you’ll have 10minutes and then we’ll do the public comment period and I do have four speakers for
that. Sure, Wynne.
Board Member Furth: So, I just wanted to ask Staff to explain the CEQA process on this
project a little bit. We’ve been looking at this, at least on an informal basis, for some
time and the scoping session was held March 3rd on the environmental review?
Mr. Ah Sing: Of 2016.
Board Member Furth: Thank you. I was thinking that you were running on a very
compact schedule.
Chair Lew: Ok, so you have 10-minutes.
Mr. [Mont] Williamson: Good afternoon Board, it’s nice to be here. My name is [Mont]
Williamson representing the owner of this development. I just have a couple thoughts
before our team does their presentation. We were here in front of you 16-months ago
and we were in front of the community in a session about 18-months ago so it’s been
that long since we were in front of you all. We’ve been busy this last 16 and 18-months.
I want you guys to know that we listened to what he heard from the community and
we listened to what we heard from you. The two issues we heard where from you folks,
mostly massing. The idea of taking this project that was designed around the perimeter
of the land and putting it more in the center is what we feel we heard. I want to know
that we studied those options and we have some slides to show you the effort we put
into it. More mentally, the slides are simple but we did really work hard to come up with
a successful hotel using just the very center of this land mass. We didn’t think it was
super successful so we went back to our original idea and have a presentation for you
to show what we’ve done to improve. On the community side, traffic is what we heard
the most. We’ve spent the last 16-months with the City on an environmental impact
report that we feel shows the facts on the impact of traffic and we worked hard at that.
We also care about that issue so we’re hoping the whole group can look at those facts
and understand the true impact of traffic. So, we are here hoping to get approval. I do
want you to know that we’re – we want you to understand the efforts we’ve put forth
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and we’re here to listen. If there are some tweaks that we can do to gain that approval
but what we have in front of you is roughly what we think works and we are on a
timeline with Marriott. We have convinced Marriott to stay with us for the last year and
a half, largely because Council went on record about 16-months ago saying they like
the project and they’d like us to push forward. That helps us convince Marriott to stay
with us. We are still on a tight timeline so here’s our team presentation.
Mr. Randy Pop: Alright thank you. Randy Pop, architect. We all know each other so
thank you for sticking around so late today to go through this with us and I’ll try and
move through this very quickly. As everyone says, we’re trying to move forward and we
know what the issues are and we feel we’ve responded to those in a thoughtful way
and I’ll take you through that quickly. In regard to the EIR process, Sheldon did a great
job summarizing that for us but I wanted to just point out that everything other than
the historic aspect of this site, which we hear Council is going resolve through a
statement of overriding concern, produces a less than significant impact. Traffic,
acoustics and even aesthetics that wherein the EIR were resolved. Just very briefly,
right? Here’s our context. This hotel – this site as many of you have said is in the right
place and we’re near demand. We’re going to reduce (inaudible). It’s on Palo Alto land.
Many of you have heard, this generates $3.5 million dollars of (inaudible) a year so a
very valuable project for the City. This is our context – there is goes. Not what today’s
zoning encourages. Over time this area is changing. The JCC, Hausner, it’s near Linkin,
it’s near Google. I would be challenged to bring something like this to the Board today
and so we heard you and we tried to really study what we heard from you. These three
diagrams are really simple little diagrams but there was a lot of work and a bunch of
days spent the sort of studying these things and I’m just trying to bring you along with
us in the process. I apologize because over the course of the time that we were
working on them, we were sort of rotation the diagram and so San Antonio is on the
left and then at the bottom and then on the right so I’m sorry about that. What we are
looking at here is how to shift the mass of the building to the center and if we do that,
we need a fire lane that goes around the outside, there is parking that goes around the
outside. We lose the brand identity because we don’t have the duel brand buildings
anymore; pretty difficult. Even farther from that, there’s just no way to keep the room
count. We’re dropping from 294 down to 220 to 210. I didn’t even show you the option.
It’s just a single bar building in the middle that was down at like 140 and so they are
just no longer economical. It just loses its ability to really be a financially viable project
at that point and beyond that, we really felt that surrounding a building in a sea of
asphalt is not really an appropriate tactic. Based on all of that, we went back to our
earlier concept and thought about how can we really start to adjust and respond within
the framework of what we had and so doing that, looking south, we really wanted to
show you what it looks like. I went out in the street. I took pictures. We had a renderer
insert these pictures into – insert the model into the pictures for us and want you to
really see how things will change and what it will look like. We’ve – as Sheldon has
mentioned, made some changes to this building where the last version you saw kind of
had some eroded corners but still had a five-story mass on El Camino. We’ve pushed all
that back to the middle of the site now and the three-story element that’s on San
Antonio really a response to the pedestrian experience and to the contextual
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compatibility guild lines to the scale of the buildings that are in the vicinity of that and
what is coming in that area. Just moving on, still looking south but this I the pedestrian
perspective and I want to – oh I lost my clock. I don’t know how far I have gone here
in terms of time. My clock turned off.
Chair Lew: 4- minutes.
Mr. Pop: 4-minutes, alright thank you. I’m going quickly so we get through this. In the
for the ground you see (inaudible) and the trucks and the chain link fence and it’s too
close to the street. Then beyond that at 760, you see the concrete box and beyond
that, in the current photo, you see this corrugated metal building and that is something
that we are planning to replace. Frankly, what we are proposing improves on all of this.
It really is just so much better to resolve this 24-foot setback and terrace the building
back and maintain that kind of height that is so consistent with what is across the street
from it. Then looking north, again you can see, I think how successful the terracing is.
Really pulling the mass of the building back and away from the street in a way that we
heard everyone wanted and what we’ve attempt to really resolve. Taking a look at that
in this other direction, Sheldon already took you through this section so I won’t belabor
that but what we did is in order to achieve this changes the types of rooms that are in
the AC. We had some rooms that were two keys and modified that so it’s just one key
so we’re taking mass out there and we’re shifting the mass around to the back and into
the inside to where that green area is. It’s really much easier to see on this upper level.
Sheldon showed you kind of a roof plan of this but just diagrammatically at the top
floor, you can what we are doing is removing the double loaded corridor at the front.
We’re creating some really deep terrace and pulling the building back and all of that
mass is either being removed or shifted around in other ways but we’re staying at that
2.4 or 2.0 FAR. I wanted to just touch on that FAR for a minute. What we heard from
Council recently in their discussion of the Comp. The plan is that they are moving the
FAR. They are moving the FAR to 2.5. They want bigger hotels, they want more of this
and you zone for what you want. Hoping that your incenting people to create it. Then
it’s up to use as architects to craft that on the site in a way that works. Hopefully, I'm
bringing you along in a way that shows you that we’ve gone back, we’ve tried to study
how to compress this more to the middle. I resisted putting a picture of the Luxor Hotel
in the presentation but I think that what we are trying to do here is pretty reasonable
with buildings that have a base, a middle, a top. They’ve got character. The corners are
different from the middles. There’s a lot of articulation here and responding particularly
to Board Member Baltay’s comments. This three-story glass element that opens the
building up and is very inviting. The same thing is happening at the Courtyard. We’ve
got very similar tactics that we’re taking. You can see how just the eroded corner from
the 12/15 hearing has changed now to a much broader building and just – I want to
just touch on materials before my times up. These are some examples of what
Courtyards and ACs look like in other areas. For Silicon Valley and for Palo Alto in
particularly, we know that those need to be elevated. We bring you A+ materials here.
They are beautiful, they are durable, they are crisp. You’ve got the sample board and
we brought some additional material to show you what the metal panel – the thickness
of it. What the character of that Venetian plaster. It’s very smooth and hand applied.
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These are beautiful, durable, crisp material. Really consistent with the brand standards
are but at the same time, elevated in quality. I dropped in really quickly this image of
the shading to show you that there really is very little to no effect, that the building
height is creating around it. The only place that we’re really impacting is a wall that has
no windows. Just in summary here, we’ve spent quite a bit of time studying the site.
We’ve got other information here that I can take you through if you like but I want to
leave it – ah, perfect. I want to leave it with this image and let use have some
discussion about where we are and hopefully come to some resolution. We’re open to
any ideas. Thank you.
Chair Lew: Thank you, Randy. I’m sure we will get back to you with a lot of questions.
Let’s do the public comment period now and so we have Pat [phonetics][Starett] and
then followed by Joan [phonetics][Betzurey], then Joan [Lariby] and Nancy Martin.
Ms. Nancy Martin: First of all, I’m not Pat. I’m Nancy Martin but Pat had to leave and
she gave me her objections to read. They are hand written to bear with me. I’ll have
trouble with her handwriting. Her main concern is traffic and where is the emergency
vehicle problem addressed in the EIR? We know under CEQA, I guess emergency
vehicles are exempted but are they exempted under all codes? Where is this
addressed? Which code exempts this problem? I mean constantly you’re hearing
emergency vehicles going to accidents and problems down on 101 and they use San
Antonio and they use Rengstoff and this is going to cause huge problems – traffic
problems. The left on Leghorn is the – is inadequately addressed. It is a tragedy waiting
to happen. How do the emergency vehicles get around to attend a fire or a medical
issue? Nowhere did I see in the EIR where this problem was addressed. What about
emergency vehicles going to 101 to help with an accident? Please tell me why these
issues have not been researched? How many people are going to use the shuttles? Not
discussed. Numbers from the studies do not override the human element – do not
consider the human element in the area. They count. They are real and are already
there. The tables used in the report are just numbers. It looks like they share this
information and then wave the magic wand and they see how the problem disappears.
A good fairy is a children’s fairy tale and how modern problems disappear. This is Pat.
Thank you.
Chair Lew: Thank you. Joan [Betzurey].
[Ms. Joan Betzurey:] This have been a marathon. I’m here as a concerned homeowner
and I’m at Greenhouse one and I would like to strongly request that the ARB will not
and I repeat will not approve demolishing of the two existing buildings at 744 and 748
San Antonio Road. My reasons for that are as follows. 744 has been designated as a
historic resource per EIR point 3.4.3 and I quote, “744 San Antonio Road demolition
would result in the loss of a California Register eligible structure and mitigation
measures would not reduce this impact to a less than significant level. The project,
therefore, would result in a significant unavoidable impact to historic resources.” Also,
we find that there are realistically major problems and issues that continue to be
associated with this project with Marriott and as a result, approval could be
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questionable so why demolish two perfectly viable buildings? Some of the major ongoing problems and issues are being addressed at today’s meeting. We are submitting
comments to the EIR and as a majority of its conclusions of less than significant impact
is not based on complete or current data or information, which therefore makes those
conclusions questionable. As an example, I would like to refer to the Comprehensive
Plan policies, especially to the aesthetics and visual resources that apply to this project.
That would be L-5 and L-5 states, maintain the scale and character of the City. Avoid
land uses that are overwhelming and unacceptable due to their size and scale. With L-5
in mind, I refer Board Members to EIR 3.1.2.2, which has a questionable conclusion,
which is impacts to existing visual character. Comparison pictures are included showing
the existing site compared with the proposed site. I’ve brought here a high tech. copy
of that picture of the comparison. When you look at this, you can’t help but question
how the existing site comprised of single-story commercial buildings with trees, with
open space, is not visually degraded – thank you. Is not visually degraded by the
proposed massive, high-density, unattractive, five-story hotel structures, which are not
compatible with the neighborhood. I again ask the Board to deny permission of the
demolishing of the two buildings. Thank you.
Chair Lew: Great. Thank you and Joan [Lariby].
[Ms. Joan Lariby:] Good afternoon Board Members. It’s nice to see you all again. I’m
Joan [Lariby]. I’m a longtime resident and property owner here in Palo Alto; at 777 San
Antonio Road which is Greenhouse One. I’m opposing the construction of two hotels at
744, 748 and 750 San Antonio Road. This two-acre site should be reserved for housing.
The Comprehensive Plan is stating that in the next several years, we can expect 3,400
more employees – people working here in Palo Alto. These 3,400-people come but not
by themselves. They bring a spouse, the bring a baby and increasingly they are
bringing the grandparents so these families are going to need a place to live and we all
know that Palo Alto has quite a shortfall in available housing. This is a good are for
families where I have lived for the last 34-years and where my daughter graduated
from Gun High School. We have the Mitchell Park library, we have the Mitchell Park
Community Center, we have the YMCA that’s open to everybody, the Jewish Community
Center is open to everybody. We have the San Antonio station for Caltrain just down
the block. The primary land use along San Antonio Road from 101 to Alma Street is
housing. We don’t see it when we drive by because everything is very nicely landscaped
with nice pretty walls. One whole – about three blocks of it is single-family housing.
There are two schools as we know. There’s a daycare center so this is a good place to
live and I would suggest that the 2-acre site could have maybe what, 30-35
townhouses or condos. That’s my primary reason for opposing it. The next reason is
because of reading the EIR. The Environmental Impact Report is incomplete for two
hotels. The soils and water studies were done at least two years ago and they only
studied in one of the parcels, 744. I couldn’t find any data for the 748 and 750 acres;
it’s almost an acre. That’s the site where the Courtyard by Marriot is being planned.
They were done when the planning was only for one underground level of parking.
Now, we have two underground levels of parking but the studies were only done down
for one level of parking so you’ve got to go down another 10 or 12-feet; certainly, more
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than that. The water underneath this site is a major aquifer for Santa Clara County and
in 2015, the engineers in the EIR said that it would take 10-months to dewater this site.
This is under appendix H section 3.3. At that time, the water table was at 7 ½-feet
below grade but they pointed out that during wet years, the water table rises to only 4feet below grade and friends, we know we have had a very, very wet winter. Palo Alto
goes 28 ½ inches in the last – since last July 1st. We are expecting a category storm
two to come in and so we know Ben Lomond got 99-inches of rain. That water is
coming down both underground and through the creeks. In conclusion, I would like to
see townhouses there to at least help with some of the housing needs that we have for
new families coming in to work here. It’s zoned for housing and housing would not
need to go down below grade, except for putting in the utilities. It would not need to
go down 20-feet for the excavation, which is going to cause some pretty hardship
lateral taking away – I think the lateral support of the adjoining buildings and for all of
our utilities, which are under San Antonio Road. Again, thank you for your attention and
I would like to again, recommend housing. Yeah! Thank you.
Chair Lew: Thank You and Nancy Martin.
Ms. Nancy Martin: This time it really is me, Nancy Martin. I’ve been a resident at
Greenhouse One since 1976. My comments are going to be a bit scattered as I read
through the EIR. First, one that jumped out at me was cancer exposure for children,
less than significant. Excuse me? If it’s even a little bit significant, it is significant and
there are many schools in the area. There are schools on Middlefield, schools on San
Antonio, schools over off Charleston so to me, that is significant. Hazardous material
contamination. In reading through, it didn’t sound like tests had been thoroughly done
on hazardous material contamination. Why was this not done prior to issuing the EIR?
Many of the issues brought up are cumulatively less than significant – well, not
cumulative. I’m cumulative. Less than significant impact with mitigation incorporated
but if you take all those issues and I went through and tagged off six or seven. Those
added up cumulatively to significant impact. Noise impact, how long? I don’t think the
noise impact studies counted for all the trucks that are going to be coming and going in
San Antonio. I jumped to the section in the EIR of a summary of alternatives; needed
hotel. Excuse me? We have so many new hotels on El Camino, we do not need hotels in
San Antonio. Loss of Hyatt Rickeys. Excuse me, two new hotels went up within yards of
Hyatt Rickeys. This area is designated that it could handle 38-57 housing units. Seems
to me that that should be more of the focus of what Palo Alto is looking at. Taking care
of our own residents, not those that are coming into town. One of the things that I’d
read is that the City Council was saying housing should be built closer to transit. Excuse
me? If the hotels are going to use transit and its close enough for them to be putting it
in their report, it’s close enough for residents to use the transit. Project objectives, I’m
sorry, I only see the project objectives as money, money, money. Money for both the
developers and money for Palo Alto through the hotel tax. They refer to this area as an
under-utilized area. I’m sorry, it’s not underutilized as far as the businesses are
concerned or as far as the residences are concerned. Traffic, you can access the hotel if
you are coming from 101 by going up – coming up San Antonio, making a U-turn and
turning right. Everybody that’s going to be staying in that hotel is not going to be
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working at Google. They go to work in the morning, they are going to drive down San
Antonio, make a U-turn at Leghorn and go to HP or Google up the street or all these
other companies. The traffic impact is going to be horrendous. Sometimes it already
takes me 3-mintues to get out of the driveway at Greenhouse One onto San Antonio if I
am going straight onto Leghorn or turning left. Nowhere do I see anything addressing
as far as the number of employees? Where are the employees going to drive from? We
know they aren’t going to live in Palo Alto. They’re going to be driving in. Where are
they going to be parking? We are very concerned about parking on the street, which is
already a huge problem and the fact that people will sneak into our property to park.
That is a real concern. Where will the valet parking be? I know they’ve said around the
circle but you can’t tell me that those valets aren’t going to sneak out when things are
crowded in there and park on our streets. The number of cars, the traffic is going to
greatly increase the ozone and pollution levels and the trucks are going to just be
horrendous and we’ve only recently redid San Antonio. Trucks are going to make a
mess out of that again. Five-story hotels are incompatible with the one and two-story
buildings in the area. One last point? I think of the Greenhouses as being two-stories.
You cannot see our garage from the street and what are we going to go about
dewatering? Where is that water going to go? Thank you very much. I see nothing
positive and I’m for the 38-57 housing units that could be built there. Thank you.
Chair Lew: Great. Thank you. Thank you for speaking and thank you for being patient
with us for the previous items and the EIR comment period is open and so the Staff will
respond to the EIR comments. Yeah, Jon.
Mr. Lait: Yeah, that’s correct. We’re taking notes and we’ll include those remarked into
the final EIR, draft EIR that comes out and then also, we have an opportunity for the
applicant to have a rebuttal if we’re done with the public testimony.
Chair Lew: Did you want to rebut – you can also – I think we can – you can reserve
time and (inaudible) later too as well. Ok, are there any questions? Wynne.
Board Member Furth: How many feet above sea level is this site?
Female: (Inaudible)
Mr. Pop: I’m not sure exactly what the height level is but -- oh, I’m sorry.
Female: (Inaudible)
Mr. Lait: I’m sorry, Chair. Thank you.
Chair Lew: I’m going to…
Mr. Pop: I was going to – so, I was going to say my recollection and you know, I’d hate
to be held to this but it’s…
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Board Member Furth: Right. That’s alright.
Mr. Pop: …for sure (inaudible) but my recollection is that we’re around 15 or 18-feet,
something like that.
Board Member Furth: Thank you.
Mr. Pop: I think that Nancy…
Female: (Inaudible)
Chair Lew: Excuse me, I – hold on.
Mr. Pop: My recollection is that we’re about somewhere around 15-feet. Something like
that.
Chair Lew: For the members of the public, I think – I’m going to close the public
hearing portion of the – if you have an additional comment, you can send them by
email but also, when you speak out in the – from the audience, it’s not on the
microphone so it’s not getting recorded and it’s not getting put into the transcript. Ok,
Wynne, did you have a follow-up to that?
Board Member Furth: No, thank you. I appreciate being referred to the appropriate
section of the EIR, which I clearly didn’t read as fairly as some people.
Chair Lew: Peter? Robert? Anybody? Questions – this is just questions. I have a
question for Staff. One of the members of the public mentioned about the hotel's room
count and do we have a—has anybody been keeping a tally of the loss and net
increases of hotel rooms across town? Is that maybe PTC? Anyway, I don’t need to
know but I do think that maybe a feature report – I think the Council would be
interested in knowing where we are with hotels rooms because we do have 3 – oh,
Randy. We have three new hotels, right? We have Clement…
Mr. Pop: Again, I’m just…
Chair Lew: …Hilton Gardens Inn…
Mr. Pop: …(inaudible) I’m sorry, I’m sorry to just be doing this from memory but my
recollection that since Hyatt Rickeys closed. With the constructions of all of the hotels
that have been built since then, we’re still about 30 rooms shy of where we were when
Rickeys closed and so this project would then tip us up above that level. I’ll just share
briefly that the studies that we’ve done show that the hotel occupancy rate in Palo Alto
is beyond 98%, which is unusual and challenging.
Chair Lew: Thank you for that. I have another question for Staff. Please correct me if I
am wrong, I think that maybe in previous hearings, we were talking about increasing
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the turning lane – the left turn lanes on San Antonio or am I just – is that just – is that
incorrect or am I mixing up projects? No. Ok, that’s fine. It’s not – I don’t think it’s
critical at the moment.
Mr. Lait: It doesn’t look like we have any recollection…
Chair Lew: I may be mixing it up from -- we have projects on Page Mill Road that – Ok,
thank you for that. Let’s move onto Board Member comments then. Who wants to go
first? Wynne, do you want – thank you.
Board Member Furth: I’ll be the right wing. First of all, thank you to the applicant for
the new presentation and particularly for the visuals. Those are very helpful to me.
Thank you to David Powers and Associates for the really informative cultural resources
information and thank you Sheldon for putting the period drawing of what the – how
the semi-sacred space of the funeral home viewed itself in this context and thank you
of course to the public for your careful study of the project and continued discussion
with us. Most – as I listen to the public discussion, I keep being struck by the fact that
in most cases in regard to most of the issue that is raised, as my great grandmother
would say, I’m not on that Committee. I’m not making the zoning decision. I’m not
making the discussion about whether or not a hotel should go here or housing should
go here. The only thing I get to comment on is given this proposal, does it comply with
the City standards for this place and this use. With respect to CEQA, we could, of
course, comment on the adequacy or inadequacy of its analysis just as any member of
the public can. I keep being struck by the fact that saying that something is not a
significant impact on the environment, does not mean that it won’t be both perceptible
and adverse – have both a perceptible and adverse effect on people living there. An
impact on the environment is different than an impact on us. A significant health impact
surely should be addressed but on our – in some of the other ways, I can see things
that I believe would be adversely affected as well as things that would be positively
effected about this project but I am not convinced they rise to the level of
environmental – adverse environmental impact except the removal of the interesting
mid-century building. I don’t find anything – any fatal flaws in the CEQA document
based on what I know so far. I’d be interested to see what later drafts look like. For
me, there are two areas that I think we can and should address. One of them is high
local traffic flow and traffic flow on the site. The other is what this thing looks like and
on the first, I think it could work with really aggressive management on site, that pulls
vehicles and people and shuttles off the street fast and pulls them deep into the site. I
think that could work almost all the time and that’s probably about as much as we can
require. With respect to aesthetics, one of the things that I didn’t discuss about my
previous time with Mr. Pop was that I did rant at him about – in general, I am
distressed by buildings that come to this town, which does have a specific geography
and light and setting and aesthetic and climate and tradition and give no difference to
any of those things. Now, that’s – I’ve overstating that a bit. We have a wonderful
temperate climate and I think this hotel does provide more access to the outside than
some of its other designs and I also believe and I’ll be interested in hearing from my
colleagues on this, that it’s accurate that when they say that the building materials
City of Palo Alto

Page 106
Packet Pg. 184

4.a

Palo Alto ARB Minutes - Excerpt
April 6, 2017

being used at better than those that we frequently see when we drive by similarly
badge or flagged hotels. However, I don’t particularly see things about the design that
say to me, we looked at the tradition. This is south Palo Alto, it had this – it was a post
war – post-World War II phenomenon. It – a lot of plain trees. It backs up to these
gorgeous hills and there where particular kinds of indigenous design and materials that
flourished here. By indigenous, I’m really thinking about post-World War II Blue Skies
architecture and not earlier settings. Instead, it has a great deal to do with the need
and desire of an international corporation to have its product easily identified by those
who it wishes to attract as customers and so that they will both be attracted here and
feel comfortable when they are there. Having said that, subject to hearing from the rest
of you on this topic, I think the site-specific traffic problems that most worry me, which
is that this project blocking the difficult flow of traffic on San Antonio could be
addressed with City required and enforced on-site mitigation. With the 24/7, hot and
cold valet service and the unloading of whatever to the back. I so appreciate that we’re
seeing the TDM proposals now rather than later because, at this point, they are so
integrated into our evaluation of the project, that we need to see that and I think it
needs more work. Not to say onto flippin but with respect to the building itself, I think it
has lots of virtues and I don’t think that – I like the Greenhouse Project. I’m not – I’m
very fond of the JCC as a person who uses it and I like some of its frontages. Some of
them I think is quick beautiful. Some of them are less successful but my – this is Palo
Alto. We are a City masquerading as a suburb. That means that we have lots of
significant vegetation. If we’re going to build five-story buildings, we need 4 ½-story
landscaping. My basic feeling on this, once you do what is possible with respect to
stepping things back, opening them up, using materials that we like, is to plan it out
where that makes sense. I am interested in hearing what my colleagues have to say
about what’s possible with landscaping as oppose to what’s been achieved so far and I
couldn’t figure out where the – couldn’t figure out where the artificial turf goes. It’s one
of the listed materials but I forgot to ask that question. So, those are my comments at
this point.
Chair Lew: Thank you, Wynne. So, you know one of my friends from New York City
come and visit. They always tell me that Palo Alto is a City masquerading as a soap
opera.
Board Member Furth: Well, that too but that’s the people they talk too.
Chair Lew: Ok. Peter.
Board Member Baltay: Thank you. I’m going to focus my comments on two areas of
concern that I’ve struggled quite a bit with and given it an awful lot of thought too.
They have to do with the overall building massing and whether it’s compatible with the
context of the building. Then the question of the parking in the local sense the way
Wynne was discussing it. I distinctly made some strong comments at the last hearing
about this needing to be one building in the middle of the site and I greatly appreciate
the applicant studying that option. It seems coming to the conclusion that it’s just not
viable for this site. I also appreciate them stepping back the front of the building. I find
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that the massing of the building as it’s seen from San Antonio is much improved and I
think acceptable. I spent quite a bit of time last Sunday, really trying to drive up and
down San Antonio and get a sense for what is the context because I -- this is
something that is going to come up quite a bit as the City grows. Especially as we allow
larger hotels into areas zoned otherwise for small buildings. I find myself further up San
Antonio, close to the shopping center up near El Camino and there are some very large
buildings there. I didn’t realize I had gone that far up and it’s been a few months since
I was there. They are quite large…
Chair Lew: They are 84-feet high.
Board Member Baltay: Then I found myself turning at the JCC and that’s also quite a
tall building. Then I was driving up El Camino and there are quite a few large buildings
like this as well and I guess I’ve come to the conclusion that this is contextually
compatible. In a broad sense, what’s on El Camino – on San Antonio is compatible with
the way this is going to look. It’s been a tough, head scratching, really thinking hard
about it because it’s not an easy call to me but in the end, I feel the building is
compatible. I feel that they’ve done quite a bit with the massing to make it step back
and fit into the area and then I can support it. That leaves with the question of the
traffic and rather than going on and on, I support what Wynne said. I think with
aggressive management; the design can work. I’ll leave my comments at that. Thank
you.
Chair Lew: Robert.
Board Member Gooyer: I had the same thing. I mean obviously, the biggest problem
with this is just the sheer size of the building and then I -- we have the same thing. Out
of the blue, my – couple of weeks ago, my wife decided that she wanted to have dinner
at Chief Chu’s, which we hadn’t been to in quite a while. Driving up San Antonio, all of
sudden what use to be the Sears building is now a – I don’t know, six-story, sevenstory straight vertical walls up and it’s like my goodness, this area really is changing. As
you said, it – if you look and see the larger pictures rather than just the one or twostory buildings immediately adjacent to this building. A lot of the buildings there are
getting to be four or five-story buildings. I mean it’s the same on the peninsula itself. I
mean for years, people who moved into the peninsula in the 60’s and 70’s – let’s face it,
the various Cities, no matter what they are, are no longer bedroom communities. I
mean they are – they’re Cities unto themselves and no longer an adjunct to either San
Jose or San Francisco. Having said that, I was actually very pleased – having kept the
older presentation that you had. When you put the two next to each other as to the
amount of effort you really did do to relate or I should say to tone it down for the
residences across the street. I have to give you credit for that. There are a couple of
minor things that – I think you made the comment that – I guess Peter made the
suggestion about the three-story – sort of the larger entry on the building. I like the
way it works for the AC. For the courtyard, I think it’s just too big. I’d rather see – if
you’re going to do something like that and you want to keep it open, I’d rather see it go
up two stories and then angle back as a glass roof like an atrium type entry if you want
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to do that. Where you still bring the light in but yet again, tone it down as much as you
can do. This is a good example, the one we’re looking at here, that you really have
done a good job at stepping it back and I really do appreciate that. Now it’s a matter of
– I agree with a lot of those areas. You can work with some landscaping up there so
you get the landscaping up higher and it begins to tone the sort of severness of it
down. I think it’s come a long way. The issues as you said, is traffic and the problem is
we don’t really regulate traffic here but the – I agree with my Board Members that a lot
of that is going to depend on the management of the hotels. One advantage is if this
was an enormous group of or if it was a large condominium process, where there are
all kinds of individual owners, then you wouldn’t really worry about who was in charge
of making sure that the parking got taken care of. With a hotel like that, it – there’s sort
of a boss that can regulate these things and actually get it done. For that reason, I
agree that if it’s done properly, there are a lot of hotels that I’ve stayed at in very large
urban environments that do it beautifully. I mean, my god, before you turn around,
your car is gone. I don’t know where it goes but it’s gone. That sort of thing and that
could be done here also. You know, it’s that sort of thing. Other than that, I mean
we’re not making any final decision here but I think it’s a definite improvement and I
haven’t gone into the nits and bolts of exactly – I think maybe this ought to be trimmed
up a little bit or that sort of thing. I think that’s very doable. Other than -- like I said the
lobby, I think needs to be – there are two – the whole idea of being totally separate,
these two almost look like their sort of a kid brother of the other. The only thing is the
one at the Courtyard seems to be bigger and more dominate, which I don’t think it
what you really want over the AC. I think I’ll leave it at that also at this point.
Chair Lew: Ok, thank you for the revisions. I think the stepped massing on San Antonio
is a significant improvement. I think I had a different reaction than the rest of the
Board, maybe. I – how do I want to say this? I don’t think your site is (inaudible) – I
want to say that your building, I think looks larger in the drawings than it actually is.
Like when I look at the frontage, 280-feet, that’s similar to the Hilton Garden Inn on El
Camino, which is maybe 300-feet. 280-feet is about the same size as the Mayfield
housing on El Camino, which is 50-feet high. When I look on your elevations, the
building looks – for whatever reason, however you’ve designed it, to me, it looks huge.
It looks like the projects on San Antonio Road in Mountain View, which are way taller;
84-feet high. Your project is nowhere near that big but when I look at the drawings, it
looks that way and I so think that there’s something is amiss and I don’t know – I can’t
put my finger on it exactly. I have – I save all the drawing for all the hotels that come
by and I’m going to hold you to the same standard and I think you’re close but there’s
– I think that there are little things that are missing. I would say for example, on the
Homewood Suite, the cornice is like 4-feet deep, the windows are recessed. Not all of
them but are recessed 12-inches. Sunshades are probably like 3-feet deep. There’s a lot
of quality materials like there’s brick, there’s a lot of variation in the color and I think
that on these four or five-story buildings, you actually do need to use all of those tricks
that architects do to make it work. Actually, I should back up for a second. Also on the
Hilton – on the Homewood Suite, there are balconies, there are deep recesses in the
modulation and in the massing and I think some of those are missing. I think you’ve got
– I mean you started it. Some of it’s there but I’m finding it a little bit chaotic and my
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take on it was that you need one more revision to sort of tie it all together. If I can give
you an example, if looking on some of your elevations, you’ll have one thing in the first,
something different on the second floor, something different on the third floor. I think
it’s making it kind of chaotic.
Mr. Pop: I’m going to just bring it up so you can be specific for us.
Chair Lew: Yeah, so let’s say for example…
Mr. Pop: Do you want the front elevation? Is that what you’re looking for?
Chair Lew: Try – actually, you can do it on this or what about the (inaudible). I think
you have some 3-D and I’ll get…
Mr. Pop: Start with the Courtyard?
Chair Lew: Yeah, so why don’t we do – yeah, the Marriot (inaudible). I would say for
example – well, just – let me – in general, the Marriot Court Yard Hotel, I think the
beige color scheme with the wood. I think that you’ve made design linkages to the
(inaudible) company next door. It’s the same pallet. It has a wood-textured concrete
thing so I think you’re making design linkages there. I would say also with regard to
landscaping, you’ve made designs linkages. Say the olive trees, the New Zealand Flax,
some of the [Raphael Lepus], you’ve taken some of the plant pallets from the
Greenhouse and brought it over to this site so there are linkages. Here on the Court
Yard, like if I just look on the [Axon] here, the – right at the corner. You have one thing
on the first floor, you have something different on the second, something different on
the third floor, stepping on the fourth and yet more stepping on the fifth floor. Does it
really need to be chaotic? Can it be simplified? That’s just one example, I think there
are others if you go in – on the interior Courtyard side. On landscaping, I’m a little
troubled that the basement garage extends beyond the footprint of the building.
Particularly on the sides – side property lines. It seems to me like your only – you’re
proposing shrubs or maybe Italian Cypress there because you only have 5 or 6-feet to
plant.
Mr. Pop: You mind if we (inaudible)(crosstalk)
Chair Lew: Sure, and why don’t we – we have Gary Layman the Landscape Architect
here. I think – Gary, thank you. I don’t think we have the exact plant proposed for the
– no, you do. Excellent.
Mr. Gary Layman: We do. Along the side elevations, we wanted to get something that
was very fast growing; evergreens. So maybe give us some good scale there. Create
some layering. We have a sort of semi-transparent wood fence right on the property
line and the step back behind that we have the Italian buckthorn shrubs, which are
coming up vertically against the building edges there. We’ve chosen that because that’s
one of the fastest growing, drought tolerant, you know really resilient plant materials
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who can really thrive in that kind of environment. So, we’re expecting that hedge -- it’s
unbelievably fast growing, to be in the realm of 20-feet after about 5-years. So, it’s a
very impactful shrub planting there and it would work well within that 5-foot zone. We
are taking advantage of those areas where we have the garage slab (inaudible) of the
building wall and on many of those areas, we have out stormwater treatments. So, we
have flow through planters that occur there so we have shrub planting in those zone in
addition to the hedge planting along the property line.
Chair Lew: Then for the – is it you're saying it’s Indian Buck Thorn and then have you
factored in that there’s basement waterproofing – Italian buck – Italian? The basement
waterproofing. I mean that would typically take a foot out of the soil areas so I think –
where you have – what is it? We have 5-feet now or 6-feet?
Mr. Layman: Yeah, we tried to illustrate that there in the sections and the
waterproofing and the dewatering and such would be right up against the building wall.
It actually would be a fairly narrow profile so we have a generous amount of soil to be
able to sustain the planting in those areas.
Chair Lew: Then how do you get access for maintenance there? I mean you’ve got a
raised planter and the Italian Buckthorn and you’re planting. I mean it seems like a
challenge – I mean, it seems challenging to me to maintain that in the narrowest
locations.
Mr. Layman: It is a narrow location but there is enough room to be able to access those
areas. It’s a – part of what we were trying to do as well was not to make those areas
inviting for those – other than for those people who are going to be doing maintenance
but there’s enough room there to be able to survive those areas.
Chair Lew: Then are you aware that we have the new finding for native plants and
providing – or plants – or non-native plants that provide beneficial habitat in…
Mr. Layman: That’s right and we’ve included a lot of native plants, as well as
Mediterranean, adapted plants as a part of the plant palette. As you said, these are –
we tried to borrow from the adjacent sights to help continue that context.
Chair Lew: Thank you, Gary.
Mr. Layman: Thank you.
Chair Lew: Yes, Wynne.
Board Member Furth: Alex or my colleagues, I would be interested in – what Alex’s had
to say about the Court Yard has – if this project resonates for me, that is somehow sits
in the site better and ties in better than the AC portion and maybe it’s that cold gray
white and when I particularly look at the corner – looking at 3.0, if you look at the right
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most corner on the second row, that all – that whole frontage – it’s hard for me to read
an elevation but it doesn’t…
Board Member Gooyer: I think part of it…
Board Member Furth: …work.
Board Member Gooyer: … is that I think the AC is more formal – I think they want to
press a higher end.
Board Member Furth: I’m fine with formality. Apparently in Europe – another piece of
information I picked up that I forgot to disclose. They use more white. I wouldn’t mind
more white but this cold gray black…
Chair Lew: And there’s green too.
Board Member Furth: It doesn’t – for me, when I look at this, it seems harder to
assimilate into the setting and when I’m thinking about how – I must say, we should
remember that sun microsystems use to be down the road. I mean we use to have
significant height but people were use to low-rise residential vibe. Sorry, atmosphere,
there and I think when we evoked San Antonio at El Camino, we probably terrified
people. That as much – as nice as it might be to go to a three-story Safeway, this is not
what they want to live in or near so I’m still trying to figure out – I don’t think this is
the destruction of a great view. I think it could be a creation of an attractive view.
There’s nothing inherently awful about a nicely scaled, welcoming hotel where I can
walk in and get a drink but I don’t – I would like your thoughts on could – is there a
manageable way to make the AC section work better from the street?
Chair Lew: I have a question? Yeah?
Board Member Gooyer: I have a question and I’m – it was just brought to my attention
and we just talked about this. We were talking about the – and I made the totally
incorrect statement about a three-story entry space that I said about sloping it. When
in reality, if you look at that and it’s real deceiving. They are just rooms above those
two and the reality of it, that means there’s just going to be curtains that are drawn in
front of that and that’s going to destroy the whole look of the, I think entry.
Mr. Pop: May I respond?
Board Member Gooyer: Sure.
Mr. Pop: Yeah, thank you. So, you’re correcting correcting. Those are – at the lower
level its lobby space and common space that’s downstairs. At the upper level, it
translates to rooms – to guest rooms.
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Board Member Gooyer: I mean it’s a three-story space basically but the top two stories
are rooms.
Mr. Pop: Three stories of glass but the top two stories are rooms, that’s correct. You
know, I would draw your attention to the Hilton Garden Inn that was just built on El
Camino Real. I live near that and I drive by it all the time. That’s got some tall glass –
you know, Alex mentioned a couple other hotels and the Homewood Suites is one that
I’m intimately familiar with because I designed that one but the Garden Inn has this
similar type of glass, where it’s multi-stories. At night, you notice that the shades are
pulled because you can see into the building but during the day, you really don’t. It just
looks…
Board Member Gooyer: (Inaudible)
Mr. Pop: …you’re moving past it. The glass is pretty successful but you know, this is
what’s interesting about architecture.
Board Member Gooyer: The classical example is the Four Season (East Palo Alto). At
night when you drive by, you’re looking basically in the hallway. The first time that
happened it’s like what the heck is that and it turns out it’s the hallway and it destroys
the whole look of it, to me. Here, it’s got this perceived grand entry and to me, the
thing that kills it and I’ve seen it done in other or I’ve seen it happen in other hotels.
It’s main not so much even the designer, who maybe had a vision of some sort but the
reality sets in and like you said, in the day time the curtains are all closed or open or all
this and it just destroys the whole concept of entry.
Mr. Pop: I understand.
Board Member Gooyer: If that’s the case, for the Court Yard, maybe just treat it as part
of the hotel and then do something of an (inaudible) or whatever. Something that just
says this is the entry and you showed the other various Courtyards that you have.
Almost all of them have a Porticulshare and it’s that sort of thing or something at least
just to say that -- well, that isn’t actually the main entry but still, it’s perceived to be or
then just change that so that it doesn’t look like an entry.
Mr. Pop: I’d just take your comments in concert with the comments that Chair Lew
described in terms of variety and the differentiation that’s happening in the building. To
tell you clearly, what we were trying to do is break down the massing.
Board Member Gooyer: (Crosstalk)(inaudible)
Mr. Pop: (Crosstalk)(inaudible)
Board Member Gooyer: … what’s next to it and extend it over. I wasn’t thinking that.
Mr. Pop: I’m comfortable doing something like that. These other hotels – particularly,
the Court Yards that you’re seeing.
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Board Member Gooyer: Right.
Mr. Pop: Unfortunately,
(inaudible)(crosstalk)

we

have

a

24-foot

setback,

that’s

a

special

Board Member Gooyer: (Inaudible)(crosstalk) Like I said, I’m not even worried so much
about the…
Mr. Pop: We can’t put a cornice, (inaudible)(crosstalk)
Board Member Gooyer: (Inaudible)(Crosstalk)
Mr. Pop: Nothing can extend into that and so that’s the struggle with – 24-foot setback
is…
Board Member Gooyer: Oh, I understand.
Mr. Pop: …really difficult zoning issue.
Board Member Gooyer: Anyway, I just thought I’d – (inaudible) and I realized
(inaudible). Oh well, ok.
Mr. Pop: I appreciate that though, thank you.
Chair Lew: Can we go back to Wynne’s comment about the pallet the AC hotels. You’re
proposing (inaudible) colored stucco, not painted.
Mr. Pop: Yeah, I wanted to make sure that you had (inaudible)(crosstalk)
Chair Lew: (Inaudible) we haven’t reviewed – I saw the sample board but I just wanted
to mention to you – so, I haven’t seen it. I’d like to see it. The buildings that I’ve
worked on at Stanford and Stanford generally uses (inaudible)colors stucco. It’s much
richer and has suddenly far more than a painted stucco or…
Board Member Gooyer: (Inaudible)
Chair Lew: … I know – well, it cracks.
Board Member Gooyer: No, not even that but when it rains (inaudible)(crosstalk)
Chair Lew: The color looks darker. Yes.
Board Member Gooyer: The only way to do stucco is integral ocolor and then paint it.
Board Member Baltay: No.
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Board Member Gooyer: I’m serious. I’ve done that for years. That way it (inaudible).
Mr. Pop: So, Mont has just a comment for you about this but I just want to make sure
that you understand what you are seeing in there because there’s a bunch of different
materials. We have a sample board that reflective of most of the materials and the
colors that we’re doing. Then we brought some individual pieces that are floating along
with that, which are indicative of the character and the quality of the materials. We
have a physical sample of the plaster that we’re talking about. This hand troweled
venetian finish that’s an integral color finish. That’s it and then we also have a piece of
the metal that would be painted in the colors that you see on the board that Wynne has
now. The reason why we brought that metal along is to show you sort of the…
Chair Lew: This is not the color. This is (inaudible)
Mr. Pop: That’s not the color, that’s the thickness and the weight and the durability of
that material. We wanted to bring the actual physical samples of what we’re using so
that you could really see that because they really are A+ materials. I think Mont has
something he wants to share.
Mr. Williamson: Just a comment on plaster. So, this is near and dear to our heart. We’re
a hotel here that’s across the country and in general, we don’t like plaster. We don’t do
– I wouldn’t consider this plaster. This concept of a Venetian plaster, it is – there are a
lot of labor in the steel troweling and it closes all the little capillary breaks in the
concrete. It doesn’t look like a typical plaster that soaks the water in. It is a different
effect so it’s almost like stone. I want to make sure we’re communicating. It’s applied
like plaster and then there’s a ton of labor, like they do in Europe, to close all those
pores and make it very high polished.
Board Member Furth: What’s the material that the (inaudible) go is stuck on?
Board Member Gooyer: Stuck on?
Board Member Furth: It says AC hotels…
Board Member Gooyer: That could be the metal.
Board Member Furth: … what’s the material (inaudible)(crosstalk) What’s that?
Chair Lew: It’s P8.
Mr. Pop: That’s the Venetian plaster.
Chair Lew: P8.
Board Member Furth: It’s the lighter color?
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Mr. Pop: When you think of that – you know what I’d like for you to be able to visualize
when you look at that is it’s essentially like having stone panels on the building. That’s
almost how it’s going to appear when you see it.
Board Member Furth: There are two different colors of that?
Chair Lew: P8 is the darker color.
Mr. Pop: There are two different colors of the plaster finish.
Board Member Furth: In the drawing it looks like the lighter color, right?
Chair Lew: Yeah but it’s labeled P8.
Board Member Furth: Ok, so I’m having trouble…
Chair Lew: If you go to sheet A4.0, P8 is the darker color and P7 is the lighter color.
Board Member Furth: Does that match what we’re seeing?
Mr. Pop: I just want to make perfectly clear to all four of you. This is the kind of stuff
that we are happy to adjust and temper and come to some terms with whether it’s in
this process or if you wanted it to come back to the subcommittee and just deal with
tweaks to the color. We would be – we’re very flexible about that. There’s a certain
brand recognition that I have spoken about in the past but Mont has told me that
there’s a lot of flexibility about this. We can adjust here if we need to but Board
Member Lew’s comments --Chair Lew comments about the Courtyard being on the side
that’s on – to respond to 760 and the character of that. I’ll say this and maybe it gets
me in trouble but my expectation is that the Cross Roads World Market that’s on the
other side is a very underutilized parcel. I’m expecting that that’s something we’ll in a
few years or maybe a little bit longer than that, be a parcel that is renewed and that we
would see something a little more contemporary over there. The idea is about
indigenous architectural and this was something that we talked alto about when we
were building the JCC. Should we build what’s old? Should we try and reflect that? You
know, that becomes a little Disney Land. It’s not really architecture in the same way.
What we want to do is we want to build for 2017 and something that’s appropriate for
now and his reflective of the history maybe in some way but really looks forward. That’s
how I tend to approach that and so, you know everyone has their opinions about
architecture and that’s what’s fun about it but that’s where we are.
Board Member Furth: (Inaudible) To defend my own honor esthetically, I would never
be asking you to build Soto whatever. I ask you to acknowledge where you’re building.
Mr. Lait: So, Chair…
Mr. Pop: Understood.
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Chair Lew: Yes, Staff?
Mr. Lait…just in the effort of…
Chair Lew: Yes, it’s 3:15.
Mr. Lait: … moving us along. We have one more item after this in our record breaking
ARB meeting. We do have to come back with some findings. It did sound like – I don’t
want to speak for the Board but it did sound like this was moving toward yes and if –
we do need to come back with some findings, we can do that. It sounds like there are
some very specific things that maybe need to be fine-tuned when we come back and if
we can articulate those, we can get this scheduled back for the Board within probably
the month or so.
Chair Lew: You would like comments on the draft findings?
Board Member Furth: Can I request one more thing and then I’ll shut up?
Chair Lew: Yes.
Board Member Furth: (Inaudible) If would be very helpful for me to see the drawings
we sometimes get, which show – for example, sheet A -3.0 with the plants. I know you
gave it to use with no landscaping so we can see the building. It’s very helpful for me
and I think also for the City Council to see those elevations with 5 or 10 or 20-year
landscaping in front of it.
Mr. Lait: That’s the kind of thing I think we should get in a motion as far as what you
want to see coming back.
Board Member Baltay: I’d like to throw one more thing out there I guess. Randy, I’m
looking at this and I’m really bothered by this three-story glass element on the front. As
I really studied these plans, it’s really wrong that you would put that out there and say
that’s a three-story space. That’s what I asked for and it’s not. It’s a bunch of rooms
above it. There’s no change in the building itself that justifies that. Looking now at the
facade for the AC building, I think it – you need one more pass at the just organization
of the massing. You’ve done a fine job getting it back in a big sense to me, our
concerns about contextuality but you just can’t have a three-story wall of glass and it is
two hotel rooms above it. I mean the people in there aren’t going to be happy. The
people outside aren’t going to be happy. It’s going to look different all the time. There’s
no door underneath it. You’re just trying to sort of appease one comment without really
taking it to heart as a designer and designing it differently, which is what I asked. I’d
rather – I think you need to go back around once more and maybe get rid of it if it’s not
working. You don’t want to put the door there. You can’t afford the three-story space.
Well, don’t try to trick me and show me something at first (inaudible) looks like that.
That said, I think Wynne’s comments about the pallet of materials also on the AC
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building. I think you could make it a warmer, softer gray. Try to get the grays to be
more compatible with the warmer (inaudible) (crosstalk)…
Board Member Gooyer: (Inaudible)
Board Member Baltay: …after so I can move that – if – are we ready – are we looking
for a motion Alex or do you want to do that?
Board Member Gooyer: If that’s the case, I’d like to see the same thing occur on the
three-story space at the….
Board Member Baltay: Oh, absolutely. Yeah, on both of them. Yeah, I mean as much
as I’d love to see a three-story glass lobby. If that’s not going to happen, don’t just put
the glass there without everything else. That’s just not going to work and because
you’ve done that, now I’m afraid you’re back to the drawing board to figure it out so it
really does work. I don’t support approving it now. I think you are in for another round
but the basic idea works. I’m ok continuing this – shall I make that motion Alex?
Chair Lew: Right, I think the Staff recommendation is to continue it to a date uncertain.
Board Member Gooyer: Uncertain or certain?
Chair Lew: Well, the Staff recommendation that – the thing that I have says uncertain.
Mr. Lait: Right so that’s the Staff recommendation. Based on the Board’s dialog it does
seem like there’s some discreet – I’m hearing it’s not there yet but there are some
discreet things that need to be addressed that, I think the applicant could probably do
within the next couple of weeks and we can schedule this to a date certain, to come
back in a month’s time.
Board Member Gooyer: Would you be happier with a date certain?
Mr. Pop: Yeah, I was just going to say that I really appreciate how specific everyone
has been today. It’s very helpful to hear the precise comments the way you have
delivered them. 5/18 would be an easy option for us.
Board Member Gooyer: I don’t know. We did the last one at 5/18, can they…
Mr. Lait: Yeah, we’re looking at the schedule now to see what’s on there but…
Ms. Gerhardt: Yeah (inaudible)
Board Member Gooyer: (Inaudible) use to long days.
Mr. Lait: Yeah, let’s not make a habit of this
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Mr. Pop: Don’t want to beat you up but we’re anxious to come back to you and we can
certainly turn this around thoughtfully but quickly.
Board Member Baltay: I will not be present at the meeting on the 18th. If that’s
combined with Kyu being recused, then that’s not a good idea.
Board Member Gooyer: Ok. That’s true. That’s right because you’re stuck with four
people rather than…
Chair Lew: Peter, you had sent out an email on the dates that you are going to be
absent and then I think Robert, you had mentioned that you’re going to be absent?
Board Member Gooyer: (Inaudible)
Chair Lew: Ok, so you’re not…
Mr. Pop: 6/1?
Chair Lew: Is it 6/2? I’m just looking at the schedule.
Mr. Pop: Oh, do I have the date wrong? 6/1 I think.
Chair Lew: OK, I think our schedule is off.
Female: (Inaudible)
Chair Lew: No, I think we’ve closed the public hearing but you can – please do continue
to send – you can send emails to Sheldon and we can keep the communication open.
Female: (Inaudible)
Chair Lew: I have to say the – we can’t – everything that you say now is not being
recorded as part of the hearing.
Female: (Inaudible)
Chair Lew: Actually, it does need to be recorded.
Mr. Lait: We just need a motion from the Board as to whether you want to continue it
to – what is it June?
Ms. Gerhardt: 6/1.
Mr. Lait: June 1st and then with a discreet list of things that need to be addressed upon
its return. Alternatively, you could push it to the 18th but you’re going to have three
members.
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Board Member Gooyer: To a date certain.
MOTION
Board Member Baltay: Ok, I’ll move that we continue this project to a date certain of
June 1st with a request that they revise the design. The massing of the three-story
façade of both buildings to not have a three-story wall of glass and perhaps slight
better articulate the overall integration of the forms.
Board Member Gooyer: Different – a warmer…
Board Member Baltay: Then secondly, to go for a warmer pallet on the AC building. The
grays are fine but a warmer tone instead of grays.
Board Member Gooyer: And a better landscaping to show what it would look like with
mature…
Board Member Baltay: The third one is about the landscaping. Is it the landscaping
itself or the presentation of the landscaping?
Board Member Furth: What I would like to be able to do is see it but my goal is to have
landscaping that is significant with regard to this building. We pushed up the
landscaping…
Board Member Gooyer: As Gary was saying, what is it going to look like in 5-years?
Board Member Furth: And what I am saying is that I want it to be up there. We had
Mercedes get taller trees…
Board Member Gooyer: Right.
Board Member Furth: …. because it’s a taller building. I want tall trees.
Board Member Baltay: So, the third condition is then to get a more detailed landscaping
plan with larger, taller trees per Board Member Furth’s comment and then present it on
the plan’s set…
Board Member Gooyer: Nice to show what it would look like.
Board Member Baltay: …to really show what it would look like. Did I cover it? That’s the
motion then.
Board Member Furth: (Inaudible)
Board Member Gooyer: I’ll second that.
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Mr. Lait: I don’t know if – Chair, you had your comments about the recesses and the
canopies and so forth. The depth – adding some depth to the façade wall.
Board Member Furth: They eyelashes on the upper stories.
Board Member Baltay: That’s what I meant by that first comment about…
Chair Lew: I think that’s…
Board Member Baltay: … improving the articulation of massing.
Chair Lew: …in the articulation of forms and there are built to requirements and
building code requirements for cornices and projections with regard to the property line.
I mean – I think that’s stuff that Randy has to work out so I think we’ll just leave it at
articulating forms. Ok, so we have a motion by Board Member Baltay and seconded by
Board Member Gooyer. All in favor? Opposed? None and we have Vice Chair Kim
abstained.
MOTION PASSED 4-0 WITH VICE CHAIR KIM ABSTAINED.
Chair Lew: Ok. It’s 4 – it’s almost 4:30 and this is a record.
7.
PUBLIC HEARING / QUASI-JUDICIAL. 2555 Park Boulevard [17PLN00064]:
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Project Plans
Hardcopies of project plans are provided to Board members. These plans are available to the
public online and/or by visiting the Planning and Community Environmental Department on the
5th floor of City Hall at 250 Hamilton Avenue.

Directions to review Project plans online:
1. Go to: bit.ly/PApendingprojects
2. Scroll down to find “744 San Antonio Road” and click the address link
3. On this project specific webpage you will find a link to the project plans and
other important information

Direct Link to Project Webpage:
https://www.cityofpaloalto.org/news/displaynews.asp?NewsID=4394&TargetID=319
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